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Notes:
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Mr. YAN Yifan was appointed as an executive Director and the chief executive
officer on 8 April 2022.

Mr. LYU Changsheng was appointed as a non-executive Director on 1 August
2022.

Ms. CHOI Ngai Wah resigned as a non-executive Director on 3 August
2022.

Mr. LEE See Barry was appointed as an independent non-executive Director,
the chairman of the audit committee and a member of each of the
remuneration committee, the nomination committee and the share award
committee of the Board on 31 March 2022.

Mr. CHAI Nan resigned as independent non-executive Directors and ceased
to act as members of each of the audit committee, the remuneration
committee, the nomination committee and the share award committee of
the Board on 7 April 2022.

Ms. WANG Weixia resigned as an independent non-executive Director and
ceased to act as the chairman of the remuneration committee and a
member of each of the audit committee, the nomination committee and the
share award committee of the Board on 7 April 2022.

Mr. WANG Ning was appointed as an independent non-executive Director,
the chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of each of the
audit committee, the nomination committee and the share award committee
of the Board on 8 April 2022.

Prof. HUANG Cibo was appointed as an independent non-executive Director,
a member of each of the audit committee, the remuneration committee, the
nomination committee and the share award committee of the Board on
8 April 2022.

Mr. TAM Ho Leung Simon resigned as an independent non-executive Director
and ceased to act as the chairman of the audit committee and the member
of each of the remuneration committee, the nomination committee and the
share award committee of the Board on 11 April 2022.

The Board established a risk management committee on 31 March 2022. Mr.
YAN Li was appointed as the chairman of the risk management committee
and Mr. LEE See Barry, Mr. WANG Ning and Prof. HUANG Cibo were
appointed as members of the risk management committee.

Mr. WAN San Fai, Vincent was appointed as an authorised representative in
place of Mr. LIU Wai Kin on 31 May 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to declare any interim dividend for
the six months ended 30 June 2022 (six months ended 30 June
2020: Nil).

INTRODUCTION

Since the change of company name in March 2021, Zhong Ji
Longevity Science Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) have been focusing on
expanding its longevity science business. In addition to operating
and managing its existing businesses of money lending &
financial advisory business, securities and other investment
business, and property investment business. Since Years 2016
to 2020, on Caijia P2P internet finance Platform prohibited in
operation by the PRC central government legislations change,
later Company has cooperated with licensed fund manager as
strategic Partners via them offering 1st and 2nd mortgages and
investors deposit fund in PRC. In Hong Kong, the Company is
seeking opportunity to offer a pilot scheme of trade finance on
milk formula suppliers/customers.

The longevity Business was at a nascent stage having only
commenced in 2021 but is expediting its development with
operating infrastructure has already setup and extensive detailed
plan in promote and growth this Longevity science business was
in place. It was noted: (i) the Company now operated two state-
of-art testing centres in Hong Kong offering registered medical
tests or laboratory tests on advance Tumor Cells screening,
immunity/Killer cell Test, Joint Health Blood & Micronutrients
Test, Female & Male Fertility & Salivary Hormone Test,
Comprehensive Thyroid assessment and patent Third Generation
Whole Genome Sequencing Genetic Tests. With its advance
liquid nitrogen facility offer Autologous NK Cells storage, High
Efficacy CBNK cells; all these to customer each high net-worth
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client treatments on (a) improve client’ sub-health and (b) Cancer
prevention and (c) anti-aging or youth. (“Three Longevity
treatments objectives”). After the tests and treatments, the
clients are customised per their health and genetic status offer
different health care products sale of Second-generation High
Potency MSC, High Potency Antioxidant Supplement, ZHJ
Vitamin C, Nicotinamide Mononucleotide ("“NMN") Supplement
tablets. These NMN products are high profit margin products. (ii)
The Company since June 2022 per an Consultant arrangement
has erected Six Sale & distribution contracts network of PRC
GuoYao Group of Hubei, Guangdong, Shenzhen states comprise
over 2,000 pharmacies selling its longevity products. (i) The
Company currently in negotiation to cooperate with established
third party of hospital facility in PRC offering Longevity patent
medical testing and innovative healthcare solutions of customize
to clients genetic status. (iv) The Company per consignment
agents and partners in regard, or per cooperate/introduce
arrangement with insurance or financial institutions to target
high-net-worth individual to develop, expand Longevity
memberships and our services in both PRC and Hong Kong and
South east Asia. Through our innovative longevity healthcare
solutions, we are committed to realising our vision of “helping
people live longer and healthier lives”, thereby building a world's
leading ecosystem platform in longevity science.

During the six months ended 30 June 2022 (the “Period under
Review"), riding on its existing finance-related businesses, the
Group strives to venture into the field of longevity science in an
exhaustive and diversified manner to continuously improve its
industry and product chains.

The report is presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$")
the same as the functional currency of the Group.

, which is

6 Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited 2022 Interim Report

MREIRFEFE((=ZAREBEELTRE
?J) cRBANEE  RASRBELMBREN
BERR SEFPEFITEEBNREER W

AREHEE _KSUETEHARMSC)
BMMALHE  ZHIEERC RERE Vﬁ@x

(TNMN ) ## & HFZ - NMNE R FBEES ¢ (i)
Efyffi/\ﬂt RABIRIEEMZHEES

Bl BR - RIS HEEREYT TN
HE LD ﬁﬁ/\ﬂiﬂiﬁ 48 78 8 iA2,000K #HE &
ESEMWMERE: (VAARBREMREFRHEA

RENBERRELE=ZTRASFEETHRE AR
R 5 N 8 2R M & 3 10 E B 4R @ AR T
R OBREPTBERMR : MVARBEEBE
AREFRAERH  ABBERBRISBEE
MalE SERE  #HYERFEAL  EFE-

FERRETHRER BESEELERMANRK
B-BHMEEAGFHINRSREBRIRER
[BABREES|CBES KEITELRELN

HE—_Z-_—_FXA=THLEXNEA(EEH
A AEBERECREBEBOERLE 2
EHRBRENEZRE  BHRUAZFE - ZnlbH
B ERESHENEE  THSELENE
o 2 o
RERED

B (BT EY  BrLhAE®R
e & -



FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the Period Under Review the coronavirus disease 2019
("COVID-19") against the global economy continued to post
uncertainties in the first half of 2022, despite the launch of three
rounds vaccination in different countries around the world, the
recovery pace remained sluggish, the new virus variant that
forced countries to implement lock down or halt measures to
combat the spread of the pandemic in PRC. Further, the global
expansionary monetary policy had triggered the inflationary and
debt default risk, now observed in PRC property market overall
across Beijing, Chongging, Chengdu, Suzhou, Tianjin, Shanghai
cities, caused sluggish impact on the financial performance of
the Group.

The Group was principally engaged in the business of money
lending and financial advisory business, securities and other
investments, and property investments. Given such uncertain
market environment and sentiment in PRC property market, in
mitigate the volatility risk, the Group took a rather prudent
approach in operating the money lending business except via
Strategic Partners loans originated, thus a static performance
was observed. Nevertheless, the newly ventured Longevity
science business recorded a pretty impressive set of results for
the Group in the first half of 2022.

During the six months ended 30 June 2022, the Group recorded
a total revenue of HK$33,054,000 (six months ended 30 June
2021: HK$16,112,000). The Group recorded impressive
turnaround to a profit for the period of HK$6,437,000 (six
months ended 30 June 2021: loss for the period
HK$20,851,000). The Money lending and financial advisory
Business demonstrate a static revenue of HK$15,101,000 and a
segment profit of HK$12,684,000. Nevertheless, the longevity
science business contributed revenue of HK$17,953,000 and a
segment profit of HK$6,989,000 which served as a cushion to
alleviate the overall Company performance.

The basic and diluted earnings per share were HK$0.04 cents
(30 June 2021: basic and diluted loss per share were HK$0.14
cents).

For the six months ended 30 June 2022, the Group's
consolidated net assets was HK$448,434,000 (31 December
2021: HK$470,718,000).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Money Lending and Financial Advisory Business

During the six months ended 30 June 2022, a segmental
revenue of approximately HK$15,101,000 (six months ended
30 June 2021: HK$8,941,000) and a segmental profit of
approximately HK$12,684,000 (six months ended 30 June 2021:
HK$244,000) were recorded. The increase in segmental results
was due to an increase in interest receivables balances derived
by Strategic Partners loan portfolio in PRC state in Other
Receivables during the period under review. Simsen
Development Company Limited, through its wholly-owned
subsidiary established in the PRC mainland China, is principally
engaged in the provision of short to medium-term 1st and 2nd
mortgages via Strategic Partners, offering related financial
management and advisory services with presence across Beijing,
Shanghai, Guangzhou, Tianjin, Chongging and Wuxi. The
Strategic Partners and the PRC subsidiary monitored closely the
repayment progress and assess the recoverability of the 1st and
2nd mortgages loan receivable from time to time. The PRC
subsidiary is of the view that majority of the existing Strategic
Partners loan has been active and only small amount of new
loan being lent out in the first half of 2022, the loss allowance
was assessed to be minimal therefore no provision of
impairment was required for the six month ended 30 June 2022
(six months ended 30 June 2021: nil).

In Hong Kong, since obtaining the money lenders licence under
the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) in 2011, Joy Wealth Finance Limited (“Joy
Wealth”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has
provided a wide variety of loans with an accumulated amount of
approximately HK$2,536,000 (30 June 2021: HK$2,536,000).
Interest rates ranged from 12%-15% per annum during the
period under review (six months ended 30 June 2021: 10%-—
15%). For the six months ended 30 June 2022, Joy Wealth did
not derive any interest income (six months ended 30 June
2021: nil) on the loan and interest receivables. Money lenders
licence was renewed and granted to Joy Wealth on 18 August
2022 to carry on business as a money lender to 8 April 2023.
Joy Wealth. Details on the loan and interest receivables are set
out in note 14 to the condensed consolidated financial
statements.

8 Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited 2022 Interim Report

XK EREE

BEREHMBHAER
HE_ZT-__FXA=ZF+HIEANEAR @ &MEKE
2 EB UL ZE #915,101,0008 7L (B E — T — —F X
B=+HI/XMEA : 8,941,000/ jt) & 5 &8 %
412,684,000 T(HE_ZEZ-_—4F~A=+H
LE7NME A : 244,000 7T) D P E AL MZ B D
B AS RS ER M EFES 1 H thE s
REENBERFESGELEN - RITHEEBERAR
NAIEBRERFEAMK I 2 2EMNBRAREE
HERASBEAEEHERTERE—HREZ
HRBERRIREHESEENERRE £
BREIEER LB BN XRE -BEBEREH-
BRASIERERTPBINE QR TRE ) ERER
EENTEERE - NE —SHIRIEERN kK
Bl - EBATIRE  RERKAEZED
ABLEFR—EBERNEFRMRE T —F ¥
FEREELEFEFWEL  BEBERTEAEZ
N BB E_E - _FANAB=1THIENEAARE
EHEREREBE_SE-_—EXA=1+H1F
NEAR E) o

BT —FRIEZB A FE163ZME AN
WMEHNEARRE  AEE2ENBEARERY
BEBRAR(ERNDEREBEESELN A
2,636,000 T(Z &= —F XA =+ B:
2,636,000 L) M S FBE R - RE A - F 7
RN T1N2%EI% (BE T - —FXA=TH
HEAREA  10%E15%) cHE T - —F XA
=+ BRIENER - BRI EREWER R ER
BEMMEKA(BE-"E-_—FXA=+H1F
NEAR B MEAMBER-_Z=-_-_FNA
TNREEHITRFEMULLEREAEBRE -
T=FMNANR - BEBRKEREFENFE
NSRRGSR A T S mERKIEE14 -



As 11 August 2022 announced, the Company has setup
Independent Recovery Committee, pursuant to regulatory
authority past guidance letters in recover of Hong Kong Joy
wealth outlined 36 loans, being priorly impaired, of aggregate
outstanding amount approximately HK$1,076,476,999 as at
31 December 2019. The Committee will deploy its own
third-party assessment, implement necessary recovery actions
and take adequate steps (including but not limited to criminal
proceedings) that should be taken by the Company against the
Borrowers, as it deems appropriate. The Committee shall
ascertain from the Company supplied materials and documents,
financial records and/or any electronic records of these 36 arrear
loans. Both Hong Kong and PRC legal Counsellor and other
professionals will be engaged by the Independent Recovery
Committee in pursuance this outstanding approximately
HK$1,076,476,999 loans, as at 31 December 2019.

From the date of this Results publish, various writ of summons
and liquidation order applications were issued from the Registry
of the High Court against the borrowers in respect of the
outstanding loan and interest, owned by Joy Wealth, by the
Independent Recovery Committee.

Apart from legal actions, the Independent Recovery Committee
also actively negotiating with the borrowers to recover the
outstanding loan and interest receivables, assess the
effectiveness of proceeding existing or potential legal procedures
for taking over the ownership of pledged assets from the
borrowers and guarantors.

Securities and Other Investments Business

Securities Investment

As at 30 June 2022, the Group was holding several investments
which are equity securities listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for long term
investment. During the Period under Review, these investments
in the listed securities led to a net fair value loss of
approximately HK$13,414,000 (six months ended 30 June 2021:
net fair value gain of HK$23,853,000) recognised in the
condensed consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
The net fair value loss recognised as other comprehensive
income for the same period last year was due to the decrease in
the market value of certain listed equity investment during the
Period under Review. Significant investments in listed securities
are discussed as below.
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Investment in shares of Imperial Pacific

The major balance of the aforesaid listed securities represented
the Group's investment in 271,345,000 shares of Imperial Pacific
International Holdings Limited (a company whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 1076) (“Imperial
Pacific”), representing approximately 3.8% of the issued share
capital of Imperial Pacific as at 31 December 2021. Investment
costs of the shares of Imperial Pacific were approximately
HK$76,490,000. Imperial Pacific, through its subsidiaries, is
mainly engaged in gaming and resort business, including the
development and operation of a hotel and casino resort on the
Island of Saipan.

As at 30 June 2022, the fair value of the shares of Imperial
Pacific held by the Group amounted to approximately
HK$24,150,000 (31 December 2021: approximately
HK$24,150,000), representing approximately 42.5% (31
December 2021: 42.5%) of the Group’s total investment in
listed securities and approximately 4.7% (31 December 2021:
4.7%) of the Group's total assets. Meanwhile, there was neither
disposal nor addition of shares of Imperial Pacific during the
Period under Review (six months ended 30 June 2021: Nil).

As at 30 June 2022, the operation of Imperial Pacific was
temporarily ceased since March 2020, to combat against the
COVID-19.

The Group regularly monitors its investment performance and
make appropriate investment decisions regularly. In addition, the
Group would allocate part of its resources from time to time to
purchase principal-guaranteed wealth management products to
increase its overall return.

Property Investment Business

The Group commenced the property investment business at the
end of 2020 and the properties held by the Group are held in
the location of Mainland China and the Island of Saipan. As all
the properties were vacant and not yet generated any revenue
to the Group. The Group incurred some miscellaneous expenses
with regards to the properties during the 2022. The Group will
continue to monitor the market condition and will find suitable
tenants which can contribute stable rental income to the Group
or to dispose the investment properties for capturing profitable
capital appreciation.

10 Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited 2022 Interim Report
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Longevity Science Business

Recognising the strong growth potential of the longevity science
sector, the Group has been stepping up its investment to
accelerate its transformation since last year. During the Period
under Review, the Group's longevity science business delivered
astonishing performance despite difficult pandemic operation
environment.

The revenue of this segment amounted to approximately
HK$17,953,000 for the six months ended 30 June 2022 (six
months ended 30 June 2021: HK$7,171,000), of which,
approximately HK$3,273,000 was generated from diagnostic
consultation and medical testing, and approximately
HK$14,680,000 was contributed by the sales of longevity
biological products, with segmental profit of approximately
HK$6,989,000 for the six months ended 30 June 2022 (six
months ended 30 June 2021: HK$2,839,000). The promising
China GuoYao sale & distribution network will further enhance
our China sale in upcoming periods.

Indeed the COVID-19 and the aging population have aroused
public high concern for health across the globe, resulting in
unprecedented potentials for the development of Longevity
products and testing services in the healthcare and medical
industry.

Strengthening in-house R&D and production capabilities
During the Period under Review, Zhong Ji Longevity Science
advanced its transformation of longevity science business from
all fronts, with a focus on strengthening the Group’s hard and
soft capabilities. The Group recruited a seasoned team of
biotechnology and management talents, including the
appointment of Academician Randy Wayne Schekman, a Nobel
laureate in Physiology or Medicine, as the Honorary Chairman
and Chief Scientist of the Group, to immensely enhance the
Group's research and development (“R&D") capability, thereby
enabling the Group to achieve its strategic goals. In addition, the
Group adopted a share award scheme, which aims to recognise
employees and individuals who have contributed to the Group's
development and business growth as well as to attract talents in
the industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Given its high start-up cost compounded with the effect of
continuous COVID-19 in California, the management of the
Group has decided to subcontract the operation to an
independent third party to manufacture the longevity biological
products on the Group’'s behalf. The decision made was in line
with the management’'s goal of operational efficiency and
effectiveness.

Nevertheless the Group still control the manufacture, since
Perpetual Master Limited (“Perpetual Master”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, has leased a 36,000-square-foot
production plant in California, the United States for the
production of longevity biological products such as Nicotinamide
Mononucleotide (NMN) and VC sustained-release tablets. With
certifications of Current Good Manufacture Practices of the
United States (“eGMP"), the Food and Drug Administration of the
United States (“FDA") and the National Sanitation Foundation of
the United States (“NSF"”), the production plant is also certified
for drug manufacturing, healthcare product and organic food
processing in California, thereby ensuring stable support to the
production and technology of the Group's flagship products.
Through our commitment to building world-class R&D teams and
facilities, the Group aims to accelerate its R&D innovation and
consolidate its capacity to produce longevity biological products.
With our ever-expanding production capacity, the Group is well
positioned to take a big stride forward on the strategic
transformation to develop a world’s leading ecosystem platform
in longevity science.

Proactively identifying suitable acquisition opportunities to
perfect industry chain

In order to expand the business scope of longevity science, the
Group has been proactively identifying suitable acquisition
targets that enable the Group to enhance and enrich its existing
business during the Period under Review.
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In past, Blooming Faith Development Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, acquired two examination centres with
world’s leading platforms, namely Irving Weissman International
Advanced Medical Testing Centre which focuses on cancer
prevention and early screening, and Asian Advanced Medical
Testing Centre which is engaged in longevity medical testing.
The two testing centres boast a combined of 19 categories of
cell, health index and disease testing platforms, ranging from
circulating tumor cell blood test, cell culture, biological age
detection, automatic blood testing, and auto-immune testing. The
acquisitions are believed to lay a solid foundation for the
Group's longevity medical testing and longevity healthcare
operations to generate stable revenue in the long run. The two
testing centres commenced their operations in May this year in
Shenzhen and their services have been well received by
individuals with high net worth in China. In addition, the patents
of the Group’s two inventions of early cancer screening have
been approved by and registered with the Patents Registry of
the Intellectual Property Department of the Government of the
Hong Kong Special and Administrative Region. With its
significant enhancement on the effectiveness and accuracy of
early cancer screening, the relevant technologies can help
people prevent and treat cancer effectively, which will promote
the Group's international position in cancer prevention and early
screening.

In terms of longevity science R&D and longevity management
services, Perpetual Master entered into a non-legally binding
memorandum of understanding (“MOU") with China International
Osteoarticular Medical Group earlier this year to acquire one of
the world's largest FDA-registered international auto-immune cell
banks, Asian Integrated Cell Laboratory Limited, which is an
international dual-type full-system clinical cell bank for immune
cell and stem cell recognised by American Association of Blood
Banks (“AABB") and International Society for Blood Transfusion
(ISBT128). It is primarily engaged in the development and
transformation of cell therapies and cell pharmaceuticals, and
possesses a number of important patents for inventions in
relation to immune cells, stem cells and chondrocyte, as well as
several FDA clinical phase Il technologies in the fields of lung
cancer, hepatocirrhosis, diabetes mellitus, osteoarthritis and
aging debility. The Group has been working on the development
and transformation of its technologies.
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In period, the Group continue in negotiation with Banderland
Development Investment Holdings Limited (“Banderland
Development”) holding significant equity interest in Hangzhou
Chenghui* (#7113 ), which in turns directly holds the entire
interest of Hangzhou Chengnan Hospital* (#7135 @ 2 F2), a
second-tier comprehensive hospital specialising in telemedicine,
high-end health check, rehabilitation from severe illnesses and
comprehensive medical care. If negotiation success and
materialize the Group will, under the collaboration with
Hangzhou Chengnan Hospital, establish Zhejiang Zhongji
Longevity Medical Testing Centre and Zhejiang Zhongji Longevity
Cloud Centre, to focus on the development of world’s leading
longevity medical testing projects, cancer prevention and early
screening projects and internet-based international longevity
medical testing projects.

Striving to expand and enhance longevity biological
products

In respect of sales and production of longevity biological
products, by fully leveraging the Group's expertise in the cell
industry and ongoing enhancement of R&D and production level,
the Group has commenced the development and production of
its flagship NMN product “ZJ1” and VC sustained-release
tablets, as other longevity biological products in
California, United States since last year. In terms of R&D, the
Group’s NMN products are all made from raw materials from the
United States, which have passed the toxicity study, obtained
certification from FDA and Physicians’ Desk Reference (“PDR")
and acquired safety certification for heavy metal and sterility test
of the United States. Currently, the Company’'s NMN products
and VC sustained-release tablets are sold worldwide and well
received by high-net-worth individuals. During the period under
review, the Group's scientific research team boosted the R&D
progress of “ZJ1” to the seventh generation with the
introduction of the longevity functional beverages, safeguarding
the health and longevity of people around the world who strive
for the quality of life. In terms of marketing and sales strategy,
the Group will capitalise the existing customer base, marketing
network and sales channels of ZJ1 International Medical Group
(Hong Kong) to gradually set up the “Internet + Healthcare”
longevity system platform — Zhong Ji Longevity Cloud* (FRE &K

=/

as well
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Establishing partnerships with world-class companies

The Group entered into a MOU in relation to forming a strategic
partnership with Thermo Fisher Scientific (Hong Kong) Limited
(“Thermo Fisher”), a forerunner in the field of life sciences.
Thermo Fisher will prioritise the Group in the provision of its
latest life science technology, software and solution, so as to
propel the Group’s development in longevity science and
medical diagnosis, enhancing the productivity and R&D capability
of the Group's laboratory.

The management of the Group is confident about the business
performance in the second half of the year, and believes that
the longevity science business will gradually support the Group's
revenue growth and become a growth driver for Zhong Ji
Longevity Science in the future, in particular relying on China
GuoYao six sale & distribution contracts networking in Hubei,
Guangdong, Shenzhen, states across 2,000 pharmacy outlets.

Now, the Group already launched an overseas flagship store on
Tmall Global website for sale of ZJ1 series of nutritional
supplements, including ZJ1 NMN multi-series longevity
supplements, ZJ1 VC tablets and other products, expand with
cross-border sales channel and revenue stream into Greater
China region from Hong Kong base. The Group biological
supplements sale was champion as 2" Top Sale in July Sale
month of Duo Ying “#l& " platform.

The management of the Group is optimistic on the development
of the longevity science healthcare business, and believes that
the longevity science health business will be the driver of the
Group's revenue growth in the future, together with existing
license Money Lending business steady growth.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Prospect

As the world is adapting to the new normal due to the
COVID-19 pandemic, people become more aware of the
importance of maintaining a long and healthy life, which opens
up a promising future for the longevity science industry. With its
unwavering investment over the vyears, Zhong Ji Longevity
Science has begun to bear fruit.

At present, the Group already possessed world-class longevity
medical testing systems and longevity R&D platforms, as well as
high-quality and innovative product pipelines. Zhong Ji Longevity
keep building up its top R&D team and
strengthening strategic cooperation with other companies, so as
to constantly enhance its R&D capability and operational
efficiency, as well as to offer highly competitive longevity
products and services to meet the strong longevity healthcare
needs of China’s high-net-worth population, thereby driving and
supporting the Group's future revenue and earnings growth.

Science will

In view of China’'s steady industrialisation of cancer prevention
and early screening, the Group continue aims to establish
longevity medical testing centres in 18 first and second-tier
cities of China through mergers and acquisitions and strategic
cooperation in the coming three vyears (2022, 2023, 2024),
aiming at providing customers with world’'s leading services of
cancer prevention and early screening, longevity medical testing
and longevity management. It is expected that our early
screening services will reduce the incidence and mortality rates
of cancer by benefiting more people at high risk of cancer and
other critical illnesses, and thus expediting the national “Healthy
China Strategy”.
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In terms of longevity biological products, the sales of health
supplements saw a rising trend year on year thanks to the
increasing spending in the health supplement industry. iiMedia
Research predicts that the scale of the NMN-containing health
supplement industry in China will reach RMB27 billion at a
growth rate of nearly 70% by 2023. The Group will fully
leverage its expertise in the cellular field and continuously
enhance its R&D and production level to introduce higher quality
and more effective longevity biological products, with a focus on
catering public’'s desire for longevity and ultimately further
increase the Group’s market share of global healthcare products.

Now via China GuoYao six sale & distribution state sale
contracts, the Company believe it was possible to achieve
aggregate sale of RMB109 million approximately across pending
two and a half years from now to December 2024, sale over
2,000 pharmacy outlets. In terms of R&D in longevity science
and longevity management services, the Group will focus on the
development and related applications of cell and gene therapy,
and the provision of cell testing, cell banking and storage,
optimisation as well as cell therapy services. The Group plans to
provide longevity healthcare solutions for its members in the
long run. The Group will also continuously enhance the
coordination and operation of its longevity system platform
“Zhong Ji Longevity Cloud” and gradually improve its “Internet
+ Healthcare"” longevity system platform, integrating the quality
network channels in the offline market on the one hand and
providing its customers with the most suitable longevity
products and services on the other.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The operation of the money lending business is one of the
principal activities of the Group and it exposes to a number of
risks and uncertainties including exchange rate risk, policy risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk.

Besides, the slowdown of the PRC’'s economic growth,
tightening financial regulations as well as challenges from the
COVID-19 pandemic may adversely affect the operation of the
money lending business and financial and investment advisory
business. The volatile and unpredictable stock market in Hong
Kong also raises uncertainty on the Group’s returns from the
securities investment business.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had recorded net current assets
of approximately HK$237,420,000 (31 December 2021:
HK$232,256,000); and cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$13,634,000 (31 December 2021: HK$19,437,000). The Group
did not enter into any financial instruments for hedging purpose.

Capital Structure

As at 30 June 2022, the total number of the issued ordinary
shares with the par value of HK$0.001 each was 3,870,102,650
(31 December 2021: 3,870,102,650).

Significant Investment, Acquisition and Disposal

Save for disclosed elsewhere in this report, there was no
significant investment, acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and
associated companies that should be notified to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) for the six
months ended 30 June 2022 incurred.

Segment Information

Details of segment information of the Group for the six months
ended 30 June 2022 are set out in note 4 to the condensed
consolidated financial statements.
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Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 30 June 2022, the employees of the Group were mainly
stationed in Hong Kong and the PRC. In-house training programs
were provided for its employees to enhance their skills and job
knowledge. The management of the Company would continue to
foster close co-operation among the employees.

The remuneration policies of the Company aim at ensuring that
remuneration levels are appropriate and in line with the
Company's target, mission and business performance. To do so,
the Company considers various relevant factors such as the
remuneration levels of its market competitors, market practices,
job duties, responsibilities and scope, financial and non-financial
performance, as well as the suitability of performance-based
remuneration arrangements.

Details of Charges on Assets
As at 30 June 2022, the Group did not pledge any assets to
banks or other financial institutions (31 December 2021: Nil).

Future Plans for Material Investment or Capital Assets
It is the Group’'s corporate mission to continue to explore ways
to improve its financial performance, to diversify its operations
into new and more profitable businesses and to broaden the
sources of revenue within acceptable risk level. Hence, the
Company does not rule out the possibility of investing in or
changing to other profitable business as long as it is in the
interest of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. Also,
as part of its routine exercise, the Company reviews the
performance of its existing investment portfolio and evaluates
the investment potentials of other investment opportunities
available to the Company from time to time. Subject to the
results of such reviews, the Company may make suitable
investment decisions according to the then circumstance and
information available which may involve the disposal of the
whole or part of its existing investment portfolio and/or change
of the asset allocation of its investment portfolio and/or
expanding its investment portfolio with a view of realising and/or
optimising the expected return and minimising the risks.
Meanwhile, the Company does not preclude the possibility that
the Company may implement debt and/or equity fund raising
plan(s) to satisfy the financing needs arising out of any business
development of the Group as well as to improve its financial
position in the event that suitable fund raising opportunities
arise, as the Company has from time to time been approached
by investors for potential investment projects.
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Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, as at the date of this
report, the Company had not entered into any agreement,
arrangement, understanding, intention or negotiation that should
be disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO").

Treasury Policy

The Group has adopted a treasury policy on 24 May 2011 in
relation to the Group’s investment in securities of other listed
companies on the Stock Exchange. The objective of the policy is
to enable the Group to control and govern the possible future
securities investments (if any, which may or may not occur).

Working Capital and Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 30 June 2022 (defined as
the Group’s total interest-bearing liabilities divided by the
Group's total equity) was approximately 1.6% (31 December
2021: 1.6%).

Foreign Exchange Exposures

Business transactions of the Group are mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The Group has not
implemented any foreign currency hedging policy at the
moment. However, in view of the fluctuation of Renminbi in
recent years, continuous monitoring on the foreign exchange
exposure is carried out and the management will consider
hedging the foreign exchange exposure if it has material impact
on the Group.

Capital Commitment
As at 30 June 2022, the Group did not have any capital
commitment (31 December 2021: Nil).

Contingent Liability
As at 30 June 2022, the Group had no material contingent
liability (31 December 2021: Nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Please refer to Notes to the accounts 25, Events After The
Reporting Period.

* For identification only
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 30 June 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, the chief executive of the Company nor their close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interests or
short positions in the shares of the Company, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which any such Directors or the chief
executive of the Company is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required to be recorded
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in the register required to be kept by the Company, pursuant to BIBEA QNGBS EZEABWT ¢
Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) were required to be notified to
the Company or the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing rules, were as follows:
Number of
Number of Shares  underlying Shares Total number of
held in long held in long Shares in long
position (L)/short  position (L)/short  position (L)/short Percentage
Name of Director Capacity position (S) position (S) position (S) (Note 2)
P B R4 EE_%‘(L)/
FERERRAL)/ BERL) BR(S)H ERL
EEpg g4 BER(S)HE BES)HE R A H (Hit2)
Mr. YAN Li (Note 1) Beneficial owner and 498,855,175 (L) 9,200,000,000 (L) 9,698,855,175 (L) 250.61% (L)
interest of controlled 9,200,000,000 (S) 9,200,000,000 (S) 237.72% (S)
‘ corporation
B % (K itT) BB ARZES
NAER
Ms. CAO XIE Qiong Interest of spouse 45,600,000 (L) - 45,600,000 (L) 1.18% (L)
ERut EER
Mr. LI Xiaoshuang Beneficial owner - 38,680,000 (L) 38,680,000 (L) 1.00% (L)
(Note 3) N
TNEREWF)  EREAA
Notes: Byt -
1. Mr. Yan Li held 498,855,175 shares and through his wholly and beneficially 1. Fzﬁﬁﬁ‘aEE%E498,855,175HQHﬁfﬁ&aﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁg%ﬁ

owned company, 90.76% shareholding interest in Zhong Ji 1 International
Medical Group (Hong Kong) Limited, which in turn holds convertible notes
issued by the Company in a principal amount of HK$1,840,000,000, the
conversion rights of which,

if exercised in full,

9,200,000,000 shares of the Company.

2. This represented the approximate percentage of the total number of issued 2.

Shares as at 30 June 2022.

3. Mr. Li Xiaoshuang held 38,680,000 share options of the Company entitling 3.

him to subscribe for 38,680,000 shares.

are convertible into

AlIFA AR
[

BZRBIBEEATEIGHREE
90.76% R iRz MEBPEIREREREEER

A) BT 8 17 N € %8 A1,840,000,000% 7T
% 2 718 48 B N R

9,200,000,0000% 4x 22 =] A& 15 °

%@*Wfiif
BB D

2= /N8 5 A 4% 55.38,680,00010 7K A B B AL 4E

f%38,680,0008% % 17 1 #E F)
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2022, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company and/or their
respective close associates had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO).

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2022, so far as being known to the Directors or
chief executive of the Company, the interests and short
positions of the substantial Shareholders or other persons (other
than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) in the
Shares and underlying Shares which have been disclosed to the
Company pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO and have been recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

Long/short position in ordinary shares of the
Company:

BREXFEEEN RZT__FA=+AH"
BEARREERESTRARR HRERS
ZEBBMEARARBXEEMEEEECESE
RBEFRBEGOIEXVE) 2 ERRGH - R
DREFTEBEEFAESZIRE -

FERRRAROG HERORESRZ
=

NZE-—FXA=Z+H mARQRAESRIAES
TERAEMMA  EERFXNHEMAL(RQAAE
B ERTHRABRIN RIRH RABRG T %
EREELSRBEEEMIEXVEIE2M3D 32 15X
BERARRBEELRELABREES LB EKRHE
BEARNREFE B MR LA

RERATEERZER KRB

Number of Shares

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Number of

underlying Shares  Total number of

held in long  entitled in long  Shares in long capital of the

position (L)/short position (L)/short position (L)/short Company

Name Capacity position (S) position (S) position (S) (Note 1)

(XN

fif X BEfTREZ

HRIL)/KRIS) FAL) /KRS HEWL/KAWS) BB

2R/ tE % g 4= RBRGHEA RpEY (1)

Harmony Delight Holdings Limited Beneficial owner - 1,100,000,000 (L)  1,100,000,000 (L) 266.14% (L)

(“Harmony Delight") (Notes 2 and 3) Person having a security interest in shares 9,200,000,000 (L) 9,200,000,000 (L)
WANERERAR (M) HF2423) EREAA
BERNEREZ AT
Ma Hongyi (Note 4) Beneficial owner - 100,000,000 (L) 100,000,000 (L) 268.72% (L)

Interest of controlled corporation
EREAA
REGIRARR

5rg W)

22 Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited 2022 Interim Report

10,300,000,000 (L) 10,300,000,000 (L)



Other Information

H Al &R

Number of Shares

Number of
underlying Shares

Total number of

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

held in long  entitled in long  Shares in long capital of the
position (L)/short position (L)/short position (L)/short Company

Name Capacity position (S) position (S) position (S) (Note 1)

BERR
i ] BRTRAZ
R /RBIO) FEL /KRS #HEL/KAES) BRE
2B/t a1t gk ] RERGHA RieEH (1)
Zhong Ji 1 International Medical Group Beneficial owner - 9,200,000,000 (L)  9,200,000,000 (L) 237.72% (L)
(Hong Kong) Limited (“Zhong Ji 1") - 9,200,000,000 (S} 9,200,000,000 (S) 237.72% (S)
(Notes 3 and 5)
FEPAIRERBREEEERAT ExEAA
([ BAR (W i35%5)
China International Osteoarticular Medical Interest of controlled corporation - 9,200,000,000 (L) 9,200,000,000 (L) 237.72% (L)
Group Limited (Note 6/ - 9,200,000,000 (S} 9,200,000,000 (S) 237.72% (S)
China International Osteoarticular Medical REHLAER
Group Limited (#7/6)

Wong So Wai Beneficial owner 500,500,000 (L) - 500,500,000 (L) 12.93% (L)

BER ERARA 500,000,000 (S) - 500,000,000 (S) 12.92% (9)

Alligd Summit Inc. (Note 7) Beneficial owner - 500,000,000 (L) 500,000,000 (L) 12.92% (L)

Allied Summit Inc. (477£7) ERARA

Su Weibiao (Note 7) Interest of controlled corporation - 500,000,000 (L) 500,000,000 (L) 12.92% (L)

EEE(27) REHLAER

Notes: et -

1. Based on a total of 3,870,102,650 Shares in issue as at 30 June 2022. 1. LRZ=ZZ=Z=ZFXA=+H2Z%&#3870,102,650 2

BITRGO RER-

2. Harmony Delight held convertible notes with conversion price of HK$0.2 per 2. 161 M #5 B AR A B BT 17 28 € ¥R /3220,000,0007% 7T 2 A
Share issued by the Company (the “Convertible Notes”) in the principal BREE  RREAEBRIM 2B T ([AIRKRERE]) -
amount of HK$220,000,000.

3. On 5 November 2020, a mortgage was entered into between Zhong Ji 1 as 3. RZEZTF+—ARA REIFWERZBA) B
mortgagor and Harmony Delight as mortgagee in respect of the Convertible M (1E BAFEIE A) Bt 2N € 58 /1,840,000,0007 7T 2 A] #
Notes in the principal amount of HK$1,840,000,000. B EIEET L —IHIRE °

4. Harmony Delight was wholly owned by Mr. Ma Hongyi. 4. MMBESEREXEL2EER -

5. Zhong Ji 1 held the Convertible Notes in the principal amount of 5. FRESRIE A A £ 8 /51,840,000,000/8 T2 Al AR = o
HK$1,840,000,000.

6. Zhong Ji 1 was 90.76% owned by China International Osteoarticular Medical 6. R E 157 FChina International Osteoarticular Medical
Group Limited, which in turn wholly owned by Mr. Yan Li. Group Limited# H90.76%# z * M China International

Osteoarticular Medical Group Limitedia B8 642 &
A -
7. Allied Summit Inc. was wholly owned by Mr. Su Weibiao. 7. Allied Summit Inc. H#E R E2EHER -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2022, the Company had
not been notified of any other interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or recorded in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted the share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme") pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on
12 June 2012 (the “Adoption Date"”). The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to provide incentives to the grantee, including
employee, officer, agent, consultant or representative of the
Group (including any executive or non-executive director of any
member of the Group), to contribute to the Group and to enable
the Group to recruit high-calibre employees and attract resources
that are valuable to the Group. The Share Option Scheme shall
be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing
from the Adoption Date and will expire on 11 June 2022.

Following the expiration of the Share Option Scheme, the
Shareholders approved the adoption of a new share option
scheme of the Company (the “New Share Option Scheme”) at
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 29th July,
2022, the New Share Option Scheme was set up for the primary
purpose to enable the Group to motivate the participants of the
New Share Option Scheme to utilise their performance and
efficiency for the benefit of the Group and to attract and retain
or otherwise maintain an ongoing relationship with the
participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
long term growth of the Group, it is important that the Group
should be permitted to provide them, where appropriate, with an
incentive by offering them an opportunity to obtain an ownership
interest in the Company and to reward them for contributing to
the success of the business of the Group. The New Share
Option Scheme will expire on 29th July, 2032. For details,
please refer to the circular of the Company dated 28 June
2022.
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At the annual general meeting held on 2 June 2017, the
Shareholders duly approved the existing scheme mandate limit
under the Share Option Scheme be refreshed and renewed
provided that the total number of shares of the Company which
may be allotted and issued pursuant to the grant or exercises of
the options under the Share Option Scheme (excluding options
previously granted, outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised
under the Share Option Scheme) shall not exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at 2 June 2017, that is
387,010,265 shares of the Company. The Directors are
authorised, subject to compliance with the Listing Rules, to grant
options under the Share Option Scheme up to the refreshed
limit and to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot,
issue and deal with shares of the Company pursuant to the
exercise of such options granted under the Share Option
Scheme. Share options granted should be accepted within 28
days after the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per each
grant of the share options. The subscription price will be a price
determined by the Board and at least the highest of: (a) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheets on the date of grant of the option, which
must be a business day; (b) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant of the option; and (c) the nominal value of the shares. The
total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
options must not exceed 30% of the number of shares in issue
from time to time. No options may be granted if such grant
would result in the 30% limit being exceeded. Details were
shown in the circular of the Company dated 28 April 2017.

The maximum number of shares of the Company (issued and to
be issued) upon exercise of the share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company (including options exercised, cancelled or
outstanding) to each eligible person in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the Company in
issue unless approval of the Shareholders is obtained. Any grant
of share options to a Director, the chief executive of the
Company, substantial Shareholder, or Controlling Shareholder or
any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules), is subject to approval by the independent non-executive
Directors (excluding independent non-executive Director who is
the grantee of the share options). In addition, where the Board
proposes to grant any share options to a substantial Shareholder
or an independent non-executive Director or any of their
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respective associates, and such share options, if exercised in
full, would result in the total number of shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all the share options
already granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the past 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant in excess of 0.1%
of the total number of shares of the Company in issue on the
date of grant and with an aggregate value (based on the closing
price of the shares of the Company on the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5,000,000, such further grant of share options is
subject to the Shareholders’ approval in general meeting.

On 31 December 2020, the Company granted an aggregate of
386,800,000 share options to ten (10) consultants of the
Company (the “Consultant(s)”) (none of the grantees nor any of
their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) are
Directors, chief executives or substantial shareholders (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company at the time of the
grant of the share options) with an exercise price of HK$0.400
per new share. Each Consultant is entitled 38,680,000 share
options. The Board had set out performance targets for the
Consultants as part of the conditions for grant of the Options.
Such performance targets dictated that each of the consultants
would create revenue for the Group of a certain amount within
three years from the grant of the share options, which includes
introducing clients, investors and potential business
opportunities to the Company, recommending and advising on
potential acquisition projects and assisting and advising in
potential fund raising activities. To the best knowledge of the
Directors, the duties of the Consultants are as follows:

(1) Consultant A — introduce partners and investors to the
Company
(2)  Consultant B — provide financial advice and strategic

business strategies to the Company

(3)  Consultant C — introduce clients to the Company
(4)  Consultant D — introduce clients to the Company
(6)  Consultant E — introduce clients to the Company
(6) Consultant F — introduce clients to the Company
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(7)  Consultant G — introduce clients and investors to the
Company

(8)  Consultant H — introduce clients to the Company

(9)  Consultant | — introduce clients to the Company

(10) Mr. Li Xiaoshuang: introduce clients to the Company

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief
having made all reasonable enquiries, save for Mr. Li
Xiaoshuang, who was an independent third party at the time of
the grant of the share options, and subsequently resigned as
consultant and was appointed as an executive Director on
30 August 2021, all the remaining consultants are independent
third parties of the Company. None of the Consultants holds
share options entitling them to subscribe for Shares exceeding
1% of the total issued Shares of the Company as at the date of
grant. The period during which these share options can be
exercised is from 31 December 2023 to 30 December 2030.

Movements of the aforesaid share options during the period
were as follows:
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Number of share options

BREHS
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised  Cancelled/lapsed as at
Category 1 January 2022 during the period during the period during the period 30 June 2022
R-B-_& R-B-_&
—-A—H . ~NAZ=TH
L] I K 47 B Bk BRaTR BREHE/ A tef K 47 B
Djrector - LI Xiaoshuang 38,680,000 - - - 38,680,000
BEx-%)8
Other participants — consultants 348,120,000 - - - 348,120,000
Hi 2 8E - EF
Save as disclosed above, there were no share options granted, B EXFIHEEIIN BHE_T - _—_FA=+H

exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme
during six months ended 30 June 2022.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted the share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 18 May 2021. The purpose and the
objective of the scheme are to recognise the contributions of
certain participants to the development and growth of the Group
and to provide them with incentives in order to retain them for
the continual operation and development and to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group.

The Company may from time to time, allot and issue new
shares in the share capital of the Company to the trustee as
directed by the Board and/or share award committee, which shall
constitute part of the trust fund, for the grant of restricted
shares to selected participant(s) as set out in the rules of the
Share Award Scheme and the trust deed. The Board shall not
make any further award which will result in the aggregated
number of restricted shares granted pursuant to the Share
Award Scheme (excluding restricted shares that have been
forfeited in accordance with the Share Award Scheme)
exceeding 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at 18 May 2021, that is 387,010,265 shares of the Company.

No shares were awarded under the Share Award Scheme of the
Company during the six months ended 30 June 2022.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
During the six months ended 30 June 2022, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the code provisions (the “Code
Provision(s)”) set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
during the six months ended 30 June 2022.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the terms contained in the Model
Code for Security Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Company's
code of conduct for security transactions and dealing (the
“Model Code”). All existing Directors, upon specific enquiry,
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
during the six months ended 30 June 2022.
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UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in
information of the Director since the last published 2021 annual
report of the Company and up to date of this report are set out
below:

1. Mr. Lyu Changsheng was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 1 August 2022.

2. Ms. Choi Ngai Wah resigned as a non-executive Director on
3 August 2022.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REVIEW

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
currently comprises of three independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Lee See Barry (the chairman of this committee),
Mr. Wang Ning and Prof. Huang Cibo. The Audit Committee has
adopted terms of reference which are in line with the CG Code.

The unaudited condensed consolidated results for the six
months ended 30 June 2022 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

As at the date of this report, the Directors are:

Executive Directors Independent Non-executive

Directors
Mr. Yan Li (Chairman) Mr. Lee See Barry
Mr. Yan Yifan Mr. Wang Ning

(Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Li Xiaoshuang
Ms. Cao Xie Qiong

Prof. Huang Cibo

Non-executive Directors
Dr. He Yiwu
Mr. Lyu Changsheng

By order of the Board

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
Yan Li

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 August 2022
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

ﬁﬂﬂnﬂ_\ = \/2%

Six months ended 30 June 2022
BHE-_T-_—_F,A=1+HIEEAR

Six months ended 30 June

BEANA=+tHLAMEA

2022 2021
—E-8 —E-—%
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBEZR) (REEFEZ)
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
M 5 FHxT FET
Revenue I &= 4 33,054 16,112
Cost of sales $H & AR (3,946) (1,971)
Gross profit E A 29,108 14,141
Other income and gains H g A KU e 5 172 851
Selling and distribution expenses $HE XD HEMAX (1,258) (2,820)
Administrative expenses THAX (21,467) (29,779)
Finance costs B 75 X 7R 6 (221) (43)
Share of results of joint ventures [B{E& & EELES (182) (3,201)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRBATRF (B8 7 6,152 (20,851)
Income tax credit st e 8 285 -
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD H A& Rl (Ei8) 6,437 (20,851)
Attributable to: EBR
Owners of the Company FiN/NETEZ PN 6,273 (20,801)
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR 2 164 (50)
6,437 (20,851)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE B} & 2 7% A 4 9
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BAZEREF,
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE (E8|)
COMPANY
Basic and diluted AR #E HKO0.04 cents HK(0.14) cents

0.043& 1l (0.14)78 11l
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

LS

VPN

MIN

gyl

o 2}

Six months ended 30 June 2022
BHE-_T-_—F,A=1+HIEEAR

Six months ended 30 June

BEANA=tHLAEA

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBER) (REgsE=)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAET
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD HRER,(EE) 6,437 (20,851)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME Hft2m (Eig) W
ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss AIREHEHMEH D EEER
in subsequent periods: ZIEE -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign ¥ E /N EMEE L 2 E
operations k) (15,307) (4,031)
(15,307) (4,031)
ltems that may not be reclassified to profit or T&RHEEHEEFHEE
loss in subsequent periods: Bm2EA
Changes in fair value of equity investments (EEAEAFTEABEMEE
designated at fair value through other WS AR ZBEAIEE 2
comprehensive income ARSEE=) (13,414) 23,853
(13,414) 23,853
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME M H 2| (&i8), Wi -
FOR THE PERIOD, NET OF TAX BNBRBIIE (28,721) 19,822
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR HAE2EEBREH
THE PERIOD (22,284) (1,029)
Total comprehensive loss for the period BERUTALINBEREZE
attributable to: EiE MR %E
Owners of the Company KAREA A (21,825) (130)
Non-controlling interests e I = (459) (899)
(22,284) (1,029)
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ﬁ Hﬂ AN

30 June 2022
—E-__—_FXA=+H

CRAE R €

30 June 31 December
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
ANB=+H +=-A=+—8
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (fe &%)
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5% FE T FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Plant and equipment % 5 I 5% 11 1,308 1,652
Investment properties "EME 25,152 26,001
Right-of-use assets FREEE 12 2,873 4,832
Interests in joint ventures REELEZER 5,487 5,753
Financial assets at fair value through R A FEFEBEMEE
other comprehensive income WS ARZE@MEE 13 32,461 56,877
Loan and interest receivables JEWE KT B 14 144,465 145,585
Total non-current assets EMBEEME 211,746 240,700
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories rE 1,942 1,020
Loan and interest receivables W E T B 14 69,221 72,279
Trade receivables JE UK BR 5K 15 732 19
Deposits, prepayments and other e BRI R H A E IR
receivables IE 16 194,497 176,358
Tax recoverable Al W Bl 7438 3,891 4,072
Amounts due from related JE Lk 8 B R B SRR
companies 20 7,485 3,610
Cash and cash equivalents RehREFEY 13,634 19,437
Total current assets MBEERE 291,402 276,795
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade payables & BR 3K 17 283 254
Other payables and accruals HtEMNRERETER 18 19,544 11,599
Other borrowing HihgE 19 7,396 7,740
Lease liabilities HEAE 3,151 3,718
Amount due to a director B —REERE 20 9,414 6,926
Amounts due to related companies & {J BB A 7 5B 20 3,755 7,817
Contract liabilities aHMAaE 5,522 1,126
Tax payable AN 4,917 5,359
Total current liabilities mEAERRE 53,982 44,539
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
LRI &

30 June 2022
T —_#FXA=+H

30 June 31 December

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
ANA=+H +ZA=+-—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (se %)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FHET FHET
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 237,420 232,256
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHERABERS
LIABILITIES 449,166 472,956
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kERBERE
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEE 732 766
Lease liabilities HEBE = 1,472
Total non-current liabilities R aERRE 732 2,238
NET ASSETS BEFE 448,434 470,718
EQUITY R
Share capital fig 2= 21 3,870 3,870
Reserves k] 418,053 439,878
Equity attributable to owners of BHERALATHEEAZES
the Company 421,923 443,748
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR 2 26,511 26,970
Total equity EREE 448,434 470,718
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

5 B 42 A 1 25 8

A

Six months ended 30 June 2022
BHEZZT-_—_FA=+HLEA~EA

B

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARRRAAEL
Equity
Share Exchange component of Non-
premium Fair value Contributed  PRC statutory fluctuation convertible controlling
Share capital account reserve surplus reserve reserve notes Total interests  Total equity
TERER
Rx ROEER ATERR B4EE hEEEER EXRDER ZEEBS i FERER BHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr
At 1 January 2022 (audited)
3870 932470 (140,742) 211,102 25,021 5188 1,755,856 443,748 26970 470,118
Loss for the period (unaudited) BRER(REER) = = = = = = 6273 164 6,437
Other comprehensive income for the period ANEp2ERE (REER)

(unaudited) - - (13414) - - (14,684) - (28,098) (623) (28721)
Total comprehensive loss for the period (unaudited) B2 EBRLE (REZH) - - (13414) - - (14,684) - (21825) (459) (22,284)
Transfer of fair value reserve upon disposal of REERATEERANZE

financial assets at fair value through other REAE? eHEERE

comprehensive income BOTHEEE - - 3,280 - - - - - -
At 30 June 2022 (unaudited) “ERR=TE

£h) 3870 932,470 (150,876)* 271,102¢ 25,021% (9,496)* 1,755,856* 421923 26511 448,434
Attributable to owners of the Company
ARAREARR
Equity
Share Exchange component of Non-
premium Fair value Contributed  PRC statutory fluctuation convertible controlling
Share capital account reserve surplus reserve reserve Total interests. Total equity
fus hEEER ATERE R TEiEEE EXRDRE EhS FakEs 4]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TR TR TR FERL FERL FERL TR TR FERL
At 1 January 2021 faudited) RZF=-%-f-A
(%#) 3810 932470 (138,506) 277,102 25,045 (14,468) 7. 1,785,856 428,832 26,054 454,886
Loss for the period (unaudited) BREE(REER) - - - - - - 20,801} (501 20,851)
Other comprehensive income for the period ANEpLERE (REER)

(unaudited) - - 23,853 - - (31821 - 2067 (849) 19,822
Total comprehensive loss for the period (unaudited) M2 EEBLE (REEH) - - 23853 - - (3,182) - (130) (899) 1,029
Equity-settled share option arangements B ENERERS

(unaudited) (#E%H) - - - - - - 13,086 - 13,086
At 30 June 2021 (unaudited) RZBZ-%7A=1H

(#E%R) 3810 932,470 (114,653) 277,102 25,045* (17,6501* 1,785,856" 441,768 25,155 466,923
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of ZERFERESEURGEUBRABRAZEEH
HK$418,053,000 (31 December 2021: HK$439,878,000) in the condensed [##%418,063,0008 T (—F = —F + = A=+ —H:

consolidated statement of financial position.
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEZR = n

mE R

Six months ended 30 June 2022
BHE-_T-_—F,A=1+HIEEAR

Six months ended 30 June

BEANA=tHLAEA

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBER) (REgsE=)
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Net cash used in operating activities RETHBHAZRESFHE (2,862) (12,499)
Cash flows from investing activities REFTBHZRERE
Bank interest received B ERITRI B 3 576
Capital injection to joint ventures AEELEITE = (3,642)
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEME BEMLIZEEE
equipment (23) (348)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at HEIRAF(EBEBE M2
fair value through other comprehensive mARZEREEMERIE
income 11,003 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing REZFBEL (BH) 2B
activities R 10,983 (3,414)
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHEARTRER

Six months ended 30 June 2022
BHE-_T-_—_F,A=1+HIEEAR

Six months ended 30 June

BEANA=THLAEA

2022 2021
—E-F —E-—%F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBER) (REeE%)
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAT
Cash flows from financing activities METBHZ2RERE
Principal and interest element of lease MENFzAE R EHLD
payments (2,032) (450)
Advance from a director RKE—BEEFBN 2,488 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEZTBHELE (BR) 2
financing activities ReFE 456 (450)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RERBESZEEYEMNBE 8,577 16,363
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INETERFB) 2 & (14,380) (4,134)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of HuolzHekBREeEEY
period 19,437 40,797
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period HiIXRZBHERREEEY 13,634 20,300
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents ReRBESEEYIN
Bank and cash balances RITRIR© & 13,634 20,300
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Notes to Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Information

5 A

GENERAL INFORMATION

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
registered address of the Company is located at Victoria
Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company
was located at Suites 1901-03, 19/F, Sino Plaza, 255-257
Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

During the period, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

° Longevity science business

° Money lending and financial advisory business
o Securities and other investments

° Property investment

ARE IS B BT R

Six months ended 30 June 2022
BHE-_T-_—F,A=1+HIEEAR

— & *
FERSHNEZSEEERAA(EQITAD R
REREFMKIZ2EREERAR HK
MREABERIFBRAR(HRIHR])
£ o AQF ZsE Mk AVictoria Place,
bth Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton
HM10, Bermuda c AR &) 2 F E & £
L7 78 8 i /8 5 + T i8255-2579RE &
#£191£1901-03%

AREEBRPALEATEIERS

e REMEXRH
e [EEREMARESR
s BHFRHEMKE

e MERE
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Notes to Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Information

BRAR & o H B 75 & BT R

Six months ended 30 June 2022

HEZ

38

T —_FXA=t+HILNEA

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These condensed consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting
Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“"HKICPA") and the applicable disclosure requirements of
Appendix 16 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The condensed consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is the same
as the functional currency of the Company.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The condensed consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for investment
properties and certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values, as appropriate.

Other than changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of new and amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"), the accounting
policies and methods of computation used in the
condensed consolidated financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2022 are the same as those
followed in the preparation of the Group's annual financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited 2022 Interim Report
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Notes to Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Information

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Application of new and amendments to HKFRSs

In the current interim period, the Group has applied, for the
first time, the following new and amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA which are mandatory effective for
the annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2022 for
the preparation of the Group’'s condensed consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual

HKFRS 3 Framework
Amendments to Property, Plant and Equipment:
HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Costs of

HKAS 37 Fulfilling a Contract
Annual Improvements Annual Improvements to
to HKFRSs HKFRSs 2018-2020

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs in
the current period has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the current
and prior periods and on the disclosures set out in these
condensed consolidated financial statements.

FERENSEEEARAT

3.

B RAR & o H B 15 & BT R

Six months ended 30 June 2022
BHE-_T-_—F,A=1+HIEEAR

FEETERR®E
ERAHIREEITERMBEREER
RARHBEE AEEERREANEEGS
RGEEMBRERERXEAT LSS
P 98400 69 T 51 28 B 75 o5 2R I RO 3T AT &%
BAIAR  ZEENR_T-__F—F—H
X 2 1& B 1A B 4R R HA ) 08 A AR A

EREVMBREER RABSIER

FE3% (BRI A)
BEGHER W% BB L& :
EAACCHIR) 1R A& Al 2 AT
B3R
ARG ER BREAN —EH
375 (B 5T A) DN

BAEMBHELERZ
T-N\FE-F=

TEMNFRUIE

ERMBHRELEL
FESE

RAREERHT REETRAEMBRE
HEAHAHR BT HEAEENM B E
BEMRAR ZEEHRAGAMBERERTDH
BRELTEEAZE -

TR —FHHRE 39



Notes to Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Information
FIRR4R & P ER B I & B 5

Six months ended 30 June 2022

HEZ

40

T —_FXA=t+HILNEA

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.
Disaggregation revenue information

W5 & 2 7B &
WaEF o &R

Six months ended 30 June

BEANA=THILEAEA

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBER) (RgEZ)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Revenue from contract customer ERB R EERBEI55R
within the scope of HKFRS 15 HEAZRBEFEHNZ
W =
Sales of health and medical products HERENMNBEEED 14,680 -
Provision of diagnostic and medical test $& 2 i & % & 8 5 IR 7
services 3,273 7,171
Rendering of financial advisory and RECRABARKERD
investment services = 2,683
17,953 9,854
Timing of revenue recognition ER BB R EERE155
within the scope of HKFRS 15 HEANZWREIRG
Point in time basis J 3R B B P 2B 17,953 9,854
Revenue from other sources H 3R U 2=
Loan interest income B8R E M A 15,101 6,258
15,101 6,258
Total revenue recognised HARERzZEkE
for the period 33,054 16,112
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Notes to Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Information

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

In the current period, the Group reorganised its internal
reporting structure which resulted in changes to the
composition of its reportable segments. Money lending and
financial and investment advisory segments have been
combined as money lending and financial advisory business
segment. Prior period segment disclosures have been
represented to conform with the current period's
presentation. The Group's reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:

(@) Longevity science business: provision of diagnostic
consultation, health and medical testing and checking
as well as distribution of cancer prevention &
immunity healthcare supplements;

(b)  Money lending and financial advisory business:
provision of loan financing for earning interest income
and provision of financial advisory and management
services rendering various loans fees;

(c)  Securities and other investments: holding of equity
investments and investment in short to long-term
financial assets for dividend income; and

(d)  Property investment: investment in properties for
rental income and/or for potential capital appreciation.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit or loss, which is a measure of adjusted
profit or loss before tax. The adjusted profit or loss before
tax is measured consistently with the Group's profit before
tax except that bank interest income, share of results of
joint ventures, finance costs as well as head office and
corporate income and expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude tax recoverable and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

FEEBNEEEARAT

4.

BB AR & P HI B 15 & BB R

Six months ended 30 June 2022
BHE-_T-_—F,A=1+HIEEAR
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Notes to Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Information
FIRR4R & P ER B I & B 5

Six months ended 30 June 2022

HE_Z-__FA=THIEEA
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REERTBERE)
(Continued)
Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax BAREMNIE REMEBRENRAEMK

liabilities and other unallocated head office and corporate DEAHREERAFBENREBRREEE

42

liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

B -#oHBaETEE%ERE

Money
lending and
Longevity financial Securities
science advisory and other Property
business business investments investment Total
RENE fEEREHE EER
£% BAER Htti& MERE @
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEX) (REEXK) (REER) (REEX) (REEXK)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TER TER TERT
6 months ended 30 June 2022 BE-_Z-__fXA=tAHL
~EA
Revenue from external customers REMNREP 2 17,953 15,101 - - 33,054
Segment profit 2 6,989 12,684 - - 19,673
As at 30 June 2022 R-B--f£XA=TH
Segment assets NEEE 37,702 324,783 32,464 25,152 420,101
Segment liabilities AHaEE 10,259 18,039 - - 28,298
6 months ended 30 June 2021 BE-ZT--§XA=TAL
~ER
Revenue from external customers REMNREP 2 7171 8,941 - - 16,112
Segment profit/(loss) AEEF/(BE) 2,839 244 - (24) 3,059
As at 31 December 2021 (audited) A -ZE-—F+_-A
=+-H(EER)
Segment assets DEHEE 35,559 324,999 56,888 26,001 443,447
Segment liabilities NHBE 3,920 18,303 - - 22,223
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Notes to Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Information
FIRR4AR & P ER B 15 & BT 5

Six months ended 30 June 2022
BHE-_T-_—F,A=1+HIEEAR

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REERIFPERE)
(Continued)
Reconciliations of segment profit or loss, assets PHEE BEEREBHE:

and liabilities:

Six months ended 30 June

BEANA=tHLAEA

2022 2021
—E-F —E-—%F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBER) (REEEZ)
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Profit or loss B#E
Total profit or loss of reportable A2HH T BERE
segments 19,673 3,059
Bank interest income AT B U A 2 576
Share of results of joint ventures JEha &b EEE (182) (3,201)
Finance costs B 75 PR AR (221) (43)
Corporate and other unallocated UNEIDNE-N i N e Bk
expenses, net (13,120) (21,242)
Profit/(loss) before tax B B AT R (B 18) 6,152 (20,851)
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Notes to Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Information
FIRR4R & P ER B I & B 5

Six months ended 30 June 2022
BHE-_T-_—_F,A=1+HIEEAR

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REERTBERE)
(Continued)
Reconciliations of segment profit or loss, assets sHEE EEREBHE: (B

and liabilities: (Continued)

30 June 31 December

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
~AB=+H +ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (EZ)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments AERoIAREE 420,101 443,447
Corporate and other unallocated assets 2@ NE M KD B EE 83,047 74,048
Consolidated total assets IREBEE 503,148 517,495
Liabilities afE
Total liabilities of reportable segments A 2| D EBAE F 28,298 22,223
Tax payable JE - B 18 4,917 5,359
Deferred tax liabilities EXERIBEEE 732 766
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities 2 & &k HAM KD E & & 20,767 18,429
Consolidated total liabilities REREE 54,714 46,777
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Notes to Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Information

B RAR & o H B 15 & BT R

Six months ended 30 June 2022
BHE-_T-_—F,A=1+HIEEAR

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION WEkoIERE)
(Continued)
Geographical information wEER
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
BZE BHE
—=2-= —E-—4F
~A=+AH ~A=+H
IE<@EA LE7RE A
Revenue from Revenue from
external external
customers customers
HBEE K SR P U AR
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REgEZ)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAT
Geographical markets i3 T 35
Hong Kong BH 8,952 6,564
Mainland China B A 3, 24,102 9,548
33,054 16,112

As at 30 June 2022, majority of the Group’s non-current
assets were located in the PRC (31 December 2021:
same).

FEEBNEEEARAT

R-ZE_—_FRA=1TH AEBKHL
ERBEEMRPE(-CZE-_—F+_A

=+—8:@R)-
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BRAR & o H B 75 & BT R

Six months ended 30 June 2022
BHE-_T-_—_F,A=1+HIEEAR

5. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

H e A K s

Six months ended 30 June

BZEAA=1tRHIEAEA
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—%F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEEZ)
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Bank interest income |ITH B WA 3 576
Reversal of impairment of loan and B L EWE R R
interest receivables A B A = 250
Others HAth 169 25
172 851

6. FINANCE COSTS

Bt % AR AN

Six months ended 30 June
BEXA=1TRHLEAEAR

2022 2021

—E=-= —E-—%F

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) (RE&FEZ)

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FE T

Interest on lease liabilities HEBGENE 221 43
221 43
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Notes to Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Information
FIRR4AR & P ER B 15 & BT 5

Six months ended 30 June 2022
BHE-_T-_—F,A=1+HIEEAR

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 7. BREBAEFR(EBE)
The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after AEBZBRBANGF,(E18) R/ (G
charging/(crediting): A AT HIEBER:

Six months ended 30 June

BEANA=+tHLEAMEA

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—%
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REgEZ)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Cost of inventories sold BEEGFTEKAN 3,946 1,971
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 1,954 413
Depreciation of property, plant and M- HEREHETE
equipment 336 367
Staff costs (including directors’ BEIRKN(BRIEEEWS)
emoluments) 7,443 10,877
INCOME TAX CREDIT 8 MBHE%

Six months ended 30 June

BEXNA=tTRLEAER

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—4F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (REgEZ)
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax ENEAFi1E — m B ¥EFRERH
— Over-provision in prior periods - BB (285) -
(285) -
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BRAR & o H B 75 & BT R

Six months ended 30 June 2022
BHE-_T-_—_F,A=1+HIEEAR

INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime in Hong
Kong, the first HK$2 million of assessable profits of the
qualifying corporation in the Group are taxed at 8.25%, and
assessable profits above HK$2 million are taxed at 16.5%.
The assessable profits of corporations in Hong Kong not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The two-tiered profits tax rates regime is applicable to the
Group for both periods.

Under the Law of the EIT and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is
25% for both periods.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

REHEKRE®)
EEENFEHRMESH T AEBARFE
&M A 7 H #2,000,0005 TT 8 2 AR B
w A %8.25% M oK M Uk B B
2,000,000% 7T &) & &% B i ) Bl #216.5% B
REHBW - AFEFERMASINNESER
AR ER B R F S B 1216.5% M & — T
KB -

ML AR R 8 F @ MR AR E -
REEEMBPARDEEMBHIAE MK
Bl PEMBRAREZMEFENHR RS

25% -°

BRER(FHE)

Six months ended 30 June

BEANA=tHLEANEA

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEEZ)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Earnings/(loss): BR(ER):
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of ARGTEEREXRREE
the Company, used in the basic and BF (BB ZHB
diluted earnings/(loss) per share RAEARGBHEBAZ
calculations w A, (E18) 6,273 (20,801)
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9. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued)

B RAR & o H B 15 & BT R

Six months ended 30 June 2022
BHE-_T-_—F,A=1+HIEEAR

BEREF(FE) @

Number of shares
Six months ended 30 June

BHEE
BEXA=1THIEAEAR
2022 2021
—E=-= —E - —4F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEEZ)
‘000 ‘000
T B T B
Shares: iRy
Weighted average number of ordinary BB 277 B AR hiAE 19 8
shares in issue during the period 3,870,102 3,870,102
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares A T~ &IBH E@AY 2 BEE S
arising from: -
Mandatory convertible notes o I 1% A 3R IR R IR 10,912,000 10,912,000
Weighted average number of ordinary FHRiESFREERTF]
shares used in the diluted earnings/ (E518) 2 LAz N
(loss) per share calculation FHE 14,782,102 14,782,102
The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue RETEIINEBREBESHERLE

have been adjusted for the number of ordinary shares that
will be issued upon the conversion of the mandatorily
convertible notes as the convertible notes were
mandatorily convertible into ordinary shares. Hence the
ordinary shares that will be issued upon conversion are
included in the calculation of basic and dilute earnings per
share from the date the contract is entered into.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the
period ended 30 June 2022 does not assume the exercise
of the Company’s share options because the exercise price
of those share options was higher than the average market
price for shares for the period.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the period
ended 30 June 2021 does not assume the impact of the
exercise of share options outstanding since their assumed
exercise would result in a decrease in loss per share.

HEZHHNERLT (BRECHETERBR KA
BMERRE)  SERTEARRMNMETFHHEE
RAE - ANATRBRRBED RV ERAYE
B HBAWILBEHREERAATR
EANEERNOTER -

AAEEE i/\ﬂ THIEHHEZ
tﬁxﬁ&%”ﬂlﬂfﬁj“ N AR R TT

F ARZEERENTEESNPAN
FHRDTE -

HEBRE-F--FXNASTRLHMAZ
1R 8 TR A R 0 OR 1T 02 B AR
EOEIRE RARBRIEESHS
RASEAD -
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BRAR & o H B 75 & BT R

Six months ended 30 June 2022

HEZ

10.

11.

12.

13.

50

T —_FXA=t+HILNEA

DIVIDENDS 10. ®RE
The Directors do not recommend the payment of any EETEEMEBEE_TE-__F<~A="TH
dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2022 (30 June ERABAZNEAKRE(ZZEZ—F XA
2021: Nil). =+H:&)o
MOVEMENTS IN PROPERTY, PLANT AND M. ME - BERRELSD
EQUIPMENT
During the six months ended 30 June 2022, property, plant HE_ZT-__FA=Z+THLEREA K
and equipment approximately of HK$23,000 (30 June 2021: SEWKEYZE - WFE K& # £23,000% T
HK$348,000) was acquired by the Group. —E-—FXA=FH:348,0008 L) °
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 12. ERAEEE
During the six months ended 30 June 2022, the Group has HE_ZT-_—_FXA=1THLEREH K
no addition of lease contracts for various items of EETEAEHELTHEEFZARZE
leasehold land and buildings (30 June 2021: Nil). EENHERN(ZE-_—FR"A=1+H":
7)o
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 13. AV EZBHEMZHEHKREARZ
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ERMEE
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
—E-CF T4
AA=+tHR +ZHA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (BT %)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Financial assets, fair value BEAFEFEZEREE
Listed equity investments, at fair value AT EFEZ ETWRAKRE 32,461 56,877

The Group’s equity investments are investments in
companies listed on the Stock Exchange and were
irrevocably designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.

The fair value of the listed equity investments is based on

their current bid prices in active markets, and therefore
classified under level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.
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Notes to Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Information

14. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

B RAR & o H B 15 & BT R

Six months ended 30 June 2022
BHE-_T-_—F,A=1+HIEEAR

14. EWEREFE

30 June 31 December

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
XA=+E +=A=+-~
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (BEZ)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHET
Loan and interest receivables JE W B T B 850,426 854,604
Less: Provision for impairment B BB R (636,740) (636,740)
213,686 217,864

Analysed as: DB
Current assets MENEE 69,221 72,279
Non-current assets ERBEE 144,465 145,585
213,686 217,864

The term of loans entered with its customers are on
credit. The credit period is generally within four vyears,
extension can be made after monitoring assessment and
further creditworthiness analysis on the debtors reviewed
by senior management. The loan receivables carried fixed
interest rate ranging from 6% to 18% (31 December 2021:
6% to 18%) per annum. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
The Group held collateral or other credit enhancements
over its certain of its loan and interest receivable balances.

AEBHRTFIIUZERERAREK - B
FHBRBETANF LaREREHEY
ANETERTIHRE—SERAIMENTTE
R-BREFRZETEFFEN TEZE18E
(ZE=Z—%F+=-A=+—H:6E =18
JB) - NEBH HHE H RO 2 EUGRIE#
BFEREE mMeaftEEeTHENS
s AEERE TERERKABE
HRIFAET R EMEE MRS -
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BRAR & o H B 75 & BT R

Six months ended 30 June 2022

HEZ

14.

52

T —_FXA=t+HILNEA

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Included in the Group’s loan and interest receivables are
amounts due from the Group’'s joint ventures of
HK$24,087,000 (31 December 2021: HK$25,206,000), which
are unsecured, bearing interest at 12% (31 December
2021: 12%) per annum and repayable in between 2024 to
2025. As at 30 June 2022 and 31 December 2021, the loss
allowance was assessed to be minimal.

An ageing analysis of the loan and interest receivables as
at the end of the reporting period, based on
commencement of loan agreement entered and the date of
interest income accrued, and net of loss allowance, is as
follows:

14.

EREREFE (@
AEBEREREFNEPBERRAER
A &> EFIE24,087,0008 T (—F - —4F
+ = A=+—H 252060008 7T) A&
BR ZEMNER2BE(ZE-_—F+=A
—t+—RH:12B)FfB WAR-ZT_UF
E_ET_HFEE - R_ZT=__FA
= t+BER=ZZE_—F+=_A=+—H 'K
SEFEEBEBREBMTIRE -

ERMEISLE R W% 2 5 ta B I R & F
BRAELAHERINGERFHEERER &
WERENERRERARZFRESITAT

30 June 31 December

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—4F

~A=+H +ZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(RBER) (K& E%)

HK$°000 HK$'000

FE T FHET

Within 30 days 30K A 2,482 652
31-90 days 31Z290K 4,849 1,284
91-180 days 912180K 7,769 1,936
181-365 days 181E365K 21,058 109,159
Over 1 year 1F A 177,528 104,833
213,686 217,864
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14. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)
As at 30 June 2022, the balances included:

Notes:

(i) Loan and interest receivables amounting to HK$125,419,000
(31 December 2021: HK$127,637,000), which are secured by share
charge of borrowers, carried at fixed interest rate at 6%
(31 December 2021: 6%) per annum;

(ii) Loan and interest receivables with net carrying amount of
approximately HK$312,000 (31 December 2021: HK$331,000), which
are secured by financial assets, carried at fixed interest rate at
15.6% (31 December 2021: 15.6%) per annum;

(i) Loan and interest receivables amounting to HK$Nil (31 December
2021: Nil), which are secured by dividend right of a company
registered in the PRC, carried at fixed interest rate at 15%
(31 December 2021: 15%) per annum. The borrower is the
shareholder of the joint venture held by the Group;

(iv) Loan and interest receivables were fully impaired (31 December 2021:
same), which are secured by consumable goods of a borrower,
carried at fixed interest rate at 12% (31 December 2021: 12%) per
annum; and

(v) Loan and interest receivables amounting to HK$60,178,000
(31 December 2021: HK$63,290,000), which are unsecured, carried at
fixed interest rate ranging from 6% to 15% (31 December 2021: 6%
to 15%) per annum.

B RAR & o H B 15 & BT R

Six months ended 30 June 2022
BHEZZT-_—_FA=+tHLEA~EA

14. EWERKAE (&)
R-E-—GXA=1+8 ZSREHBE:

Brat -

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

FE R E 3R &ﬂ5125419000%7t(7?7*¢
+=A=+—8 127,637,000 7T) * UEHKA
2RI ERE  BEFHEAEE(ZTE=—
FH+ZA=+—H:62):

FEURE R & F B R FE4312,0008 T (=%
——®+=-HA=+—H:331,00087) * L&
BEEER BEFHNERBE(ZT-—F
+=—A=+—H:156%):

BREREMEEBET(ZZE=_—F+=ZA
=+—H:E) U—HARTBEELZZAFZR
E%Vﬁﬁﬁ'iﬁﬂ‘?ﬁwr(:%ﬁ:*i
F+ZA=+—RB:15E) - ERARBREEFH
BELEZRE

ERERERANSEBERE(ZE=—F+=A
=+—H:ER)  ERAZBERIEER
EEFHNEANRE(ZE-_—F+_A=+—
B:12E): &

JE U & 3% & F 860,178,000 T (=& — — 4
+ = A =+ — H :63,290,000% jt) * A& &K
B EEFMNENTOERIE(ZE_—F+=
A=+—H:6EZE15E) -
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hkE

AR B P HI B 15 & BT RE

Six months ended 30 June 2022

HEZ

15.

54

T —_FXA=t+HILNEA

TRADE RECEIVABLES

15. AR

30 June 31 December

2022 2021

—E=-= —ZTE-—%F

AA=+H +ZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REBER) (K& E%)

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHER FAT

Trade receivables JE L2 BR 3K 14,164 13,451
Less: Impairment R E (13,432) (13,432)
732 19

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit. The credit period is generally 30 to 90 days for its
trade receivables. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables, based on the
invoice date and net of provisions, was as follows:

AEBREFNESHEATIEREE K
JE W AR S EY 15 B B — AR RBOEQ0K » A&
B 3 4 5 H 7 WOR GRS R A B (T R &
KR HEMIEEREEE -

BEXZAEENBREREE  BIREZD
BB DT T -

30 June 31 December

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—%F

AB=+H +=ZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (Fe &%)

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Current to 30 days BN EI Z=30K 732 19
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16. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

17.

RECEIVABLES

B RAR & o H B 15 & BT R

Six months ended 30 June 2022
BHE-_T-_—F,A=1+HIEEAR

16. B& AARERHMERKE

30 June 31 December

2022 2021

—EC-CF —E-—%F

AA=+H +ZHA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(RBER) (K& E%)

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FHET

Prepayments SEENE 2,246 2,849
Deposits e 16,397 15,508
Other receivables H b fE U 5K IR 232,910 215,057
Impairment BB (57,056) (57,056)
194,497 176,358

TRADE PAYABLES

The aging analysis of the trade payables based on invoice

date, is as follows:

17. ENHER

ENERTIZEZARIIRZREDITAT

30 June 31 December

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—%F

RA=+H +ZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(RBER) (&&=

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#E T FAT

Within 30 days 30K A 283 254

FEEBNEEEARAT
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hkE

AR B P HI B 15 & BT RE

Six months ended 30 June 2022

BHE-_T-_—_F,A=1+HIEEAR
18. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 18. HtENREREFTEHR
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
—E-CF T —%F
RA=+H +ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (BT %)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Other payables H e 3R IE 6,985 7,934
Accruals fEsHE R 12,559 3,665
19,544 11,599
19. OTHER BORROWING 19. HfE &
The loan was obtained from independent third party to the ERREBEASE—RBIE=F  ZHE
Group and the amount was unsecured, bearing interest at BEEE RFANEREE - WAEREXK
5% per annum and repayable on demand. The loan is EE EFRAAREFE-
denominated in RMB.
20. AMOUNT(S) DUE FROM/(TO) RELATED 20. B (B BBLAR, —RBRES
COMPANIES/A DIRECTOR E QL]
The amounts due from/(to) related companies/a director JEUW(FER) BBt AR,/ —REBREAE
were unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed term of R 2B RERETERS-
repayment.
Mr. Yan Li is a director and beneficial owner of the related BYXERBBATINESRESEEA °
companies.
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22.

23.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Information
FIRR4AR & P ER B 15 & BT 5

Six months ended 30 June 2022
BHE-_T-_—F,A=1+HIEEAR

SHARE CAPITAL 21. R
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
—E-CF —_E-—%F
AA=+tR +ZH=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (BT %)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Authorised: EE
400,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 400,000,000,000/% & i
HK$0.001 each [E {50.00178 7T 2 & &k 400,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
3,870,102,650 ordinary shares of 3,870,102,650/% & J%
HK$0.001 each A E0.001E Tz @k 3,870 3,870
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 22. HAREE
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities R-E-_—FXNA=+B AEBETET
at 30 June 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil). MEARKARBE(ZE—F+A=1—
H: M)
CAPITAL COMMITMENT 23. EARAE
The Group did not have any capital commitment as at RZEBEZZFXA=1+AH AKEITER
30 June 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil). MERNFEE(ZE-_—F+_A=+—8":
/) o
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BRAR & o H B 75 & BT R

Six months ended 30 June 2022

HEZ

=
=

ZZHFXA=TRHIEREAR

24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

58

(a)

During the six months ended 30 June 2022, a loan
interest income of approximately HK$1,222,000 (six
months ended 30 June 2021: HK$1,254,000) was
received from a joint venture, Chongging Juquan.

During the six months ended 30 June 2022, a loan
interest income of approximately HK$615,000 (six
months ended 30 June 2021: HK$509,000) was
received from a joint venture, Wuxi Juquan.

During the six months ended 30 June 2022, a loan
interest income of Nil (six months ended 30 June
2021: HK$89,000) was received from a joint venture,
Tian Xing Tianjin.

During the six months ended 30 June 2022, a loan
interest income of Nil (six months ended 30 June
2021: HK$36,000) was received from a related
company, Wuxi Jiucai Corporate Governance
Consulting Services Co. Limited (EHAUM DEEIEE
# R % AR AR, a partner of joint venture in
Chongging Juquan.
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24.

EEBAERS
(@ MEBE—_ZE-_—_F~A=1+HI1NE

(b)

(c)

A BlR—HALLEEEESER
M EU A 491,222,000 T(BHE-F
——F®XNA=ZF+BItAEA:
1,254,000/ 7T) °

REBE-_T-__FXA=THIEAMH
A BlR—HALEEHESER
A B M A #1615,00008 T (B = - F
——F®XNA=ZF+BILtAEA:
509,000 7t) °

REBEZ-ZE-_—FXA=Z1+HItNE
A BR—EEELERTREER
FMEWAAZT(BE-_ZT - —F <A
=+ H1EEA 89,0008 L) °

REBEE T - —_F X XA=1+HIE/E
A -BER—EEBAREZUM D
ERBARBAERRAG (AELEE
EBERZEZEH)EFFMERABLS (B
E-E - —FXAZ=Z+HIEXNEA
36,000/ 7T) °
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25. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

On 24 June 2022, a consultancy services agreement
(the “Consultancy Agreement”) and settlement
agreement (the “Settlement Agreement”’) were
entered into between the Company and an
independent consultant (the “Consultant”). Pursuant
to the Consultancy Agreement, the Consultant agrees
to provide the services primarily relating to the
introduction of customers to the Group in the PRC,
and the Consultant shall be entitled to receive a
consultancy fee for an amount of not less than
HK$42,571,129 (“the Indebted Sum”). Pursuant to
the Settlement Agreement, the Company has
conditionally agreed to settle the Indebted Sum by
issuing 774,020,530 new shares of the Company of
HK$0.001 per share at an issue price of HK$0.055 per
share to the Consultant under the General Mandate
(the "Settlement Shares”). The Indebted Sum
included HK$21,285,564 will be retained by the
Company pending finalisation of the amount due by
the Company to the Consultant to secure the
obligations of the Consultant under the Consultancy
Agreement for organising and managing six sale and
distribution contracts network. The Settlement Shares
will be issued under the existing General Mandate
and no approval of the Company's shareholders will
be required.

The settlement of Indebted Sum is subject to the
following conditions:

(i) the Stock Exchange approves the issue of the
Settlement Shares for the settlement and in the
manner contemplated under the Settlement
Agreement; and

(i) approval to be granted by the Listing Committee
of the Stock Exchange for the listing of and
permission to deal in the Settlement Shares.

Up to the date of this report, the settlement of the
Indebted Sum is not completed. For details of the
Indebted Sum, please refer to the Company's
announcements dated 27 July 2022.
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(Continued)
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(b)

On 25 July 2022, the Company received a letter from
the Stock Exchange notifying the Company that the
Listing Review Committee (“LRC"), having considered
all the facts and evidence, and all the submissions
presented by the Company and the Listing Division,
the Listing Review Committee decided to overturn
the Listing Committee’s decision to suspend trading
in the Company’s shares under Rule 6.01(3) of the
Listing Rules (the “LRC Decision”) on the ground that
the Company had failed to maintain a sufficient level
of operations and assets as required under Rule
13.24 of the Listing Rules. For details reasons, please
refer to the Company’s announcements dated 25 July
2022, herein summarized in brief:

(i) The Listing Review Committee and the Listing
Division has not disputed the contention that
the cessation of its P2P Business (from Year
2016 to 2020) was a result of PRC central
government multiple new regulations enforced
all P2P lending to a halt in PRC, thus P2P
Business no longer relevant to the assessment
of the Company’s compliance with Rule 13.24.

(i) Consider guidance in GL106-19 at paragraph
13(a), the LRC has consider the Company
Money lending business intertwined with
Financial Advisory Business working together
with license fund managers as Strategic
Partners model offering 1st and 2nd mortgages
to individual home loan borrowers, could regard
as carried out with a clear objective and
maintaining sufficient scale of operations.

(ii)  The LRC have noted in details on Company
presentation that the Longevity Science
Business has a promising growth prospect and
NMN products are high profit margin products
in trend, hence accepting Company shall
achieve its submitted Profit Forecast for 2022.
On that, Listing Division shall continue monitor
the Company performance based on its forecast
and any other matters of concern arise.
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